


cost kosten include einschließen

depend on abhängen von know wissen; kennen

doubt bezweifeln like mögen

exist existieren look aussehen

expect annehmen love lieben

matter etwas ausmachen see verstehen; sehen

mean bedeuten seem erscheinen

need brauchen smell riechen

owe schulden sound sich anhören

own besitzen taste schmecken

possess besitzen think meinen

prefer vorziehen understand verstehen

realize erkennen want wollen

remember sich erinnern wish wünschen

■ Einige dieser Verben (z. B. have, think, see, expect, be, look) haben mehr als
eine Bedeutung.
In einer Bedeutung ist nur die einfache Form möglich, in einer anderen auch die
Verlaufsform.

Zustand: keine Verlaufsform Tätigkeit: Verlaufsform möglich

I have no time now. (haben) I am having a break/holiday/rest.
(eine Pause/Urlaub machen /sich
ausruhen)

Ann has a lot of work just now.
(haben)

They are having lunch/coffee.
(essen/trinken)

Tom has a nice boss. (haben) They are having a
chat/talk/discussion / an argument.
(sich unterhalten /diskutieren
/streiten)

I have a good feeling. (haben) I’m having a look now. (sich



anschauen)

Can I have a copy, please?
(haben)

The changes are having an effect.
(sich auswirken)

What does Don think? (meinen) Quiet! He is thinking.
(nachdenken)

We think the plan is good.
(meinen)

We are thinking of changes. (sich
überlegen)

I see where the mistake is.
(wahrnehmen)

I am seeing Jim next Monday.
(treffen)

I see what you’re trying to say.
(verstehen)

We’re seeing more online sales.
(erleben)

I expect you’re tired. (annehmen) I’m expecting a call from Tokyo.
(erwarten)

Mrs Smith is very nice. (sein) Mr Smith is being unhelpful. (sein
= sich verhalten)

This text looks difficult.
(aussehen)

What are you looking at?
(schauen)

Das Wichtigste in Kürze
■ Keine Verlaufsform bei Verben, die keine Tätigkeit, sondern einen Zustand

ausdrücken
■ Bei Verben mit mehreren Bedeutungen – Zustand: keine Verlaufsform;

Tätigkeit: Verlaufsform möglich

 Underline the correct form.
1 Are you OK? What are you thinking / do you think about?
2 You aren’t seeming / don’t seem very happy. Is there a problem?
3 Maxine doesn’t want / isn’t wanting to take the job.
4 The canteen coffee is tasting / tastes like washing-up water!
5 I’m seeing / I see now what the cause of the problem is.

 Is the form correct? If not, correct it.
1 Mr Waites looks stressed.
2 Why are you having another argument?



3 What are you feeling we should do next?
4 Did you read this? It is sounding interesting. What are you thinking of this?

 Complete the sentences with the verbs in the correct form.

1 You. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (have) a lovely office.

2 I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (expect) you’d like a cup of coffee now.

3 Why. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (you/look) there? The projector is
not in that cupboard.

4 It. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (not matter) how much it. . . . . . . . . . . .
. . (cost). We must have it.

5 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (you/realize) how much we have
already spent on this project?

6 I . . . . . . . . . . . . . .(not understand) what their marketing person. . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(try) to say.

7 At first I thought she was crazy, but now I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (believe) her story.

 Complete these dialogues. Put the verbs in the simple present or the present
progressive.

1 A: Who. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (own) the company now?

 B: I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (think) it. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (belong to) a Chinese
consortium.

2 A: I now. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (realize) why they. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (not
want) to invest at the moment. Somebody. . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(take) us over.

 B: What? I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (not think) that I. . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(understand) you.

3 A: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . (you/take) the day off tomorrow?

 B: It. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (depend on) the boss, but I. . . . . . . . . . . . . .
(doubt) it.

4 A: I’m sorry, I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (feel) that I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (owe)



you an apology.

 B: Really? What for? I. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (not remember) anything.

5 A: It. . . . . . . . . . . . . .(seem) that they . . . . . . . . . . . . . .(need) you
tomorrow.

 B: Why. . . . . . . . . . . . . .(they/have) another meeting? I can’t go.
You. . . . . . . . . . . . . . (know) how full my schedule is. I really. . . .
. . . . . . . . . . (have) no time at all.

 Translate the following sentences.
1 Wem gehört dieses Notebook?
2 Hotelzimmer kosten mehr während der Messe (fair).
3 Ich denke über Annas Vorschlag nach. Ich denke, wir brauchen mehr Zeit.
4 Warum schaust du mich so an? – Du siehst müde aus. Ich glaube, du brauchst

Urlaub.
5 Es scheint, als ob Bernd nicht kommt. Das bedeutet, dass wir anfangen können.
6 Jetzt sehe ich, dass der Preis die Transportkosten nicht einschließt.
7 Kannst du jetzt reden? – Ich esse gerade zu Mittag, aber es macht nichts.



5 Simple past
Einfache Vergangenheit

Form

■ Verb be: was/were I was new and they were experts. Ich
war neu und sie waren Experten.

■ Regelmäßige Verben:
Infinitiv + -ed*

We worked hard yesterday. Wir haben
gestern hart gearbeitet.
I stayed in a new hotel. Ich
übernachtete in einem neuen Hotel.

■ Unregelmäßige Verben:
besondere Formen (s.
u.)

We took a taxi. Wir haben ein Taxi
genommen.
I forgot to tell you. Ich habe vergessen,
es dir zu sagen.

■ Verneinung: was/were
+ not sonst didn’t +
Infinitiv

I wasn’t here yesterday. Ich war gestern
nicht hier.
The designers weren’t happy. Die
Designer waren nicht zufrieden.
The report didn’t come yesterday. Der
Bericht ist gestern nicht gekommen.

■ Fragen, Kurzantworten:
Verb be: was/were
sonst did (+ Infinitiv)

Where was Mr Li? Wo war Herr Li?
Were you here? – Yes, I was. / No, I
wasn’t. Waren Sie hier?– Ja./Nein.
Did Ed phone? – Yes, he did. / No, he


